
EvWoD: Friendly Neighbourhood 
Exalts Episode Synopsis 

●​ Cassandra Roller (f) / Bailed Fragments of Etched Moments, aka Cas 
○​ Played by Christina 
○​ Very short gal 
○​ Sidereal Chosen of Secrets 

●​ Roswell “Nova” McArthur (f) aka Rose 
○​ Played by Julia 
○​ Plump gal 
○​ Infernal 

●​ Lenard Van Zant (m) / The White Hot Sun of the South aka Lenard 
○​ Played by Cody 
○​ Solar Dawn 
○​ Big guy southern boy 
○​ Can sense Creatures of Darkness via Taint’s Warning 

●​ Oliver / Alver Jones (m) / Within The Oblivion We Are Breathless aka Liv 
○​ Played by Tyler 
○​ Average guy 
○​ Medical student 
○​ Daybreak Abyssal 

●​ Marcy Bartello (f) / Loving Eyes of the Blessed Oceans, aka Marcy 
○​ Played by Brittany 
○​ Relatively thin, blue hair, ponytail 
○​ Solar Zenith 

●​ Stargazer 
○​ Played by Jesse 
○​ Looking like Ryden from Metal Gear Solid Rising, in a suit 
○​ Starmetal Alchemical 

●​ Roko’s Basilisk 
○​ Played by Benji 
○​ Attractive guy in a nice pressed suit 
○​ Moonshadow Abyssal 

Organized Crime and You Arc 

Episode 1 
●​ Cas, Rose, Lenard and Liv 
●​ Long Island University 
●​ Introduction to Religion Class 

○​ Ran by professor Wallace 
○​ The class drones on about Ancient Mezopotamian Religions 
○​ Lenard tosses an airplane and gets into an argument with Wallace 



●​ Go grab coffee together 
○​ Vinnie (Rose’s pizzeria boss) calls Rose 
○​ One of his waitresses is too scared to leave her house so he needs Rose to 

cover for her. Ghost of her nona was yelling at her? 
○​ She leaves to go work at the pizzeria 

●​ Alver goes to his residency at the ER 
○​ A lot of buildings he passed by were glitching and he has problems sending 

and receiving messages on his phone 
○​ Hear some people at the hospital arguing about the hippocratic oath, people 

having to pay for healthcare, earning money as a doctor, etc. 
○​ Aaron was one of the people arguing. He was recently helping with a bad 

case of someone dying 
○​ Alver checks out a tonsillectomy surgery, butts in to prevent a doctor from 

making a surgical mistake 
○​ He wanders the hospital, the TVs are not working 
○​ Feels like something is watching him, feels some icy touch almost trip him up 

●​ Lenard goes to volunteer at a soup kitchen with his friend Terry 
○​ Terry talks about how the city never sleeps because the Apple of the city is in 

so much pain because being full of worms - tall white aliens 
○​ Talk about the Bloop - an unexplained sound from the ocean recorded in 

1997, caused by Grey’s underwater sea lab 
○​ Terry drops “When the Red Star is up in the sky, that’s when you know the 

end times are here” 
●​ Cas is having a cigarette outside of school 

○​ Sees a Red Star in the sky 
○​ Some girls talking about Twilight 
○​ Televisions and phones are on the fritz 
○​ Dodges a guy on a bicycle delivering pies. He’s from Vini Vidi Pizzi 

●​ Julia arrived at Vini Vidi Pizzi 
○​ Vini needs Julia to move a dumpser 
○​ Do some other work 
○​ Julia asks Vini about a promotion, he evades, some people are bleeding him 

dry, something about his wife’s family extorting him 
○​ Julia bullshits why she needs a job while her folks have a big business of their 

own 
●​ Everyone congregates at Vini Vidi Pizzi 

○​ Chat about things 
○​ Copy notes from Alver 
○​ Talk about cursing 
○​ Vini tries to lock up but six big guys in suits walk in 
○​ Three italian mobsters in tracksuits 
○​ Three others in proper suits but don’t have italian complexion 
○​ They demand Vini to get them their money for Papa Giovanni 

Episode 2 
●​ Cas, Rose, Lenard and Liv 
●​ At Vini Vidi Pizzi 



○​ The mobsters notice Lenard being snarky, pull guns on the group 
○​ They don’t want to be killing kids though 
○​ Leave out the back, Terry is in the alley 
○​ Terry approaches the three mafia people with guns 
○​ Cas sees some weird omens pointing her to see the Red Star in the sky 
○​ Terry gets punched by a mobster, Lenard jumps to punch them 
○​ Lenard notices the Red Star, Exalts as a Solar, punches the mobster into the 

wall 
○​ Oliver got shot by the mobster in the lungs 
○​ Roswell jumps on a dumpster to dodge a mobster, the mobster jumps after 

her, Roswell sees he has racoon ears, bandit mask, a maw of fangs and so 
on 

■​ They jump into a dumpster, Roswell sees a green fire demon 
■​ Talk with a demon Marley (?) 
■​ She makes a pact with it to get the power to fix the world, etc. 
■​ She summons a tendril to attack the raccoon person 

○​ Three other mobsters come out to the back alleyway 
○​ Cas has a vision trip to Jupiter 

■​ Sees three women - Fates / Moirai 
■​ They say either she dies here, or she becomes a Chosen of Secrets 
■​ She accepts 

○​ Cas rewinds time a bit to before the mobsters came in and moves a dumpster 
in front to block them 

○​ Shoots them with finger guns 
○​ Oliver has trouble breathing 

■​ Feels like something is watching him 
■​ Sees the Red Star 
■​ It offers him power 
■​ Oliver casts off his name to exalt as an Abyssal 

○​ Oliver sees ghosts around one of the mobsters, tethered to him 
○​ Approaches the guy, withers his arm away, the guy runs away 
○​ Oliver grabs one of the ghost chains, it falls apart, the ghost is grateful to be 

free 
○​ Roswell turns Shintai 
○​ Lenard turns one of the mobsters into dust 
○​ A giant, 20-feet-long golden retriever stares at Lenard from the spirit world - 

it’s Simple Man Freebird 
○​ Lenard and Simple Man knock over the dumpster 
○​ The racoon man gets ravaged and runs to a car 
○​ Cas steals his true name - Peter Giuseppe 
○​ Simple Man heals people 
○​ Lenard explains the story of his old dog, Simple Man, etc. 

Episode 3 
●​ Cas, Rose, Lenard and Liv 
●​ Behind Vini Vidi Pizzi 



○​ Alver is chasing the mobster missing an arm and chased by ghosts. Throws a 
brick at him to knock him out 

○​ Breaks the chains of the other ghosts 
○​ The racoon vampire runs away in a car 
○​ Roswell checks on Vini while still in Shintai, he’s fighting mobsters with a 

rolling pin, gets scared 
○​ Roswell goes back into her normal form, asks for a raise and a loft above the 

place 
○​ Roswell feels tired and needs to go use her chrysalis. Finds a quiet place to 

do that for the next three days 
●​ Everyone goes back to their places to crash 

○​ Lenard has a dream of a giant colosseum, golden four armed man is there. 
He calls him the White Hot Sun of the South 

○​ Talk about his power and that with his help humanity might stand a chance 
○​ Mentions these are the end times and he needs to search for the evil of the 

first murderer to stop it 
○​ Talk in football / baseball metaphors 
○​ Lenard thinks he talked to god 

●​ Day later, go to the Long Island University Library 
○​ Lenard talks about his dream 
○​ Cas talks about meeting Fates 
○​ Lenard thinks they are angels 
○​ Oliver doesn’t like his old name and asks to be called Liv 
○​ Full name - Within the Oblivion We Are Breathless 

●​ Cas goes out to have a smoke 
○​ Gets approached by a woman in dark skirt dress, boots. Cas knows her from 

casinos, they call her Lucky. She is a law student. She has a german accent. 
Lucky has been looking for Cas for a gambling rematch 

○​ Cas agrees, but first goes to fetch the rest of the group 
○​ Go gamble with Lucky with some dice 
○​ Cas tries to pilfer Lucky’s real name, but fails 
○​ Lucky has some kind of magical bracelet 
○​ Lucky is from germany, Lenard thinks she’s a nazi 
○​ Lucky loses one of her dice down a sewer drain 
○​ Lucky demands an apology from Lenard, he says that would make him a nazi 

sympathiser 
○​ Cas goes all in vs Lucky’s bracelet, wins it 
○​ Lucky leaves 
○​ She trips on Simple Man’s tail on the way out, which is strange, since people 

can’t interact with him when he’s in the spirit world 
○​ Liv examines the bracelet, it has a lot of compressed matter, it’s some kind of 

weapon 
○​ It’s made of something fate-aspected 
○​ Cas puts it on, it’s some kind of wire thing she can control with commands 
○​ Liv’s phone is ringing, it’s from Aaron, one of the other nursing students. He 

has a problem he needs help with. He passed out in an abandon club building 
on the campus, met a nice girl, but she won’t let him leave the club 



Episode 4 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Going to the abandoned club building 

○​ Walk in through some side entrance 
○​ The air is cold and stale 
○​ Lenard sees a short figure in a white and black hoodie walking away 
○​ The place looks haunted 
○​ Sound of chairs being thrown on the ground, hear Aaron pleading to get out 
○​ See a girl with a black and white hoodie sitting on a desk - Annabelle 
○​ Some guy with digital art pad floating and drawing - Will 
○​ Talk with the girl 
○​ Aaron had sex with her 
○​ Aaron drops a mug with transparent mud something, some kind of ghost 

coffee? 
○​ The art kid ghost shows off a picture of the Exalts looking like superheroes 
○​ Liv drinks the ghost coffee, sees things more underworld-y 
○​ Talk with a taller ghost guy - Bryce 
○​ They got murdered here, they were part of the comic book club 
○​ They can’t leave the building, they just want to make comics 
○​ Talk with the ghosts to figure out what is bothering them - being murdered, not 

accomplishing things, etc. 
○​ They want to make comics based on the stories the Exalts would bring them 

and they want living people to see their stuff 
○​ Will was the drawer, Annabelle was the colorist, and Bryce was the money 

guy 
○​ Liv explains their story 
○​ Bryce will be the writer, gets to writing the comic of their story 
○​ The coffee mug has a refilling ghost coffee artefact 

●​ Meanwhile, during the Introduction to Criminal Science class, with Professor Lidia 
○​ Marcy is sitting in the lecture 
○​ Her roommate comes in late - Francesca Gant. Cute dress, etc. 
○​ She pulls out a single die 
○​ Talks how she lost a gift from a friend and was called a nazi - she is Lucky 
○​ A second die appears on her desh when Marcy wasn’t looking, it looks 

slobbery 
●​ After the class 

○​ Get stopped by a guy in a police uniform - detective Daniel Oak, criminal 
investigations 

○​ He’s investigating some collage people being involved in some shady stuff 
○​ Lucky recognizes Lenard from a photo 
○​ They were involved with some gang altercations in a pizza place, the 

policeman is worried they are involved deeper into mafia dealings 
●​ Marcy goes back to her place, outside of campus, to get some sleep 
●​ Cas goes to check up on Roswell 

○​ Sees her chrysalis 
○​ Cas asks how Lenard’s friend Terry was able to see Simple Man Freebird 

●​ Go to Brooklyn Bridge Park to find Terry 



○​ Lenard sees the Empire State Building through Simple Man’s eyes - there is a 
giant apple on top of the building 

○​ Liv takes the subway, people look all over the place from a homeless person 
to a business person 

Episode 5 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Liv on the subway 

○​ Lights flicker, the homeless guy is missing, leaving sticky, gooey ichor behind 
○​ A tendril tries to wrap around Liv’s hand, then disappears, leaving behind a 

hole all the way through the train 
●​ Meet up 

○​ Talk about the big apple on Empire State Building 
○​ Go through the Brooklyn Bridge Park 
○​ Find Terry playing a harmonica in a clearing 
○​ Liv checks whether he had a concussion. The Sun has been giving him a 

headache 
●​ Walk back to the dorms 

○​ People bump into Cas a bit more than usual 
○​ Scream of a woman down an alleyway 
○​ Lenard runs in 
○​ Woman being mugged by two guys in ski masks and knives 
○​ Lenard tackles a guy into a wall, the other one runs 
○​ Cas asks them about Peter Giuseppe 
○​ They mention the Giovanni crime family, they don’t cross them 
○​ Cas steals the name of the guy that got knocked into some garbage - Bruno 

Genovasic 
○​ The Giovannis deal in human trafficking? 

●​ Next day - Lenard is practising football 
○​ Touchdown Thomas approaches him 
○​ Him and the boys are concerned about Lenard, since he mentioned going into 

Baseball 
○​ Some police officers were looking for Lenard 
○​ Lenard gets the detective card for Daniel Oak 
○​ Lenard calls Oak 
○​ He wants to know where Lenard has been and so on 

●​ Next day for Marcy 
○​ Checks the news for what’s going on. Some head scientist is explaining the 

cell tower disruption being caused by some kind of nuclear power pant in 
Bangladesh going critical. 

○​ On the way back to classes, she sees detective Oak talking to a football 
person - Touchdown Thomas 

○​ They talk about how Lenard stopped a mugging 
○​ After classes the detective is hanging out in the shade of the tree, hear him 

talking about “the guy that beat up their ghouls” 
○​ Talking to some guy that’s named Bruce Duggans 

●​ Back at the apartment 



○​ Hear some scratching above her apartment 
○​ Go check in on some guy crying there 
○​ Open the other apartment door 

Episode 6 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Liv switches to Mortuary Science. Go to a class about it 

○​ Talk with the professor after class - he tells Liv that they need a teacher to 
sign off on them using the club building, that they should form a club or 
something 

●​ Cas researches stuff at the library 
○​ Looking for stuff about Giovanni, the ghost big apple, etc. 
○​ The Giovanni has connections to Italy going back centuries 
○​ They came into US in the 1900s, have been moving into port towns, taking 

over the crime families there, buying up some questionable properties, etc. 
○​ Find some conspiracy theory website about big cities manifesting a spiritual 

presence 
○​ See Liv walk out of a wall, as well as a few other students before him 
○​ Check the wall, see nothing 

●​ Everyone meets up at the club house 
○​ Catch up on what everyone was up to 
○​ Liv doesn’t remember walking through a wall 
○​ Cas talks about her research 

●​ Marcy going through into the apartment 
○​ Woman in cut up pyjamas, bleeding 
○​ A floating knife, slashing near the woman 
○​ Tosses a book at the knife 
○​ She Exalts 
○​ Hears some voice telling her to find her brothers and sisters 
○​ Activates her ghost sight, sees a ghost of a guy, probably died in the early 

2000s 
○​ Shoots the ghost with her revolver and Ghost Eating Technique 
○​ Ghost flees, Marcy gives chase, running on leaves 

●​ Late afternoon at the club house 
○​ Talk about what to do next 
○​ The sky darkens, a storm is blowing in 
○​ Blinded by golden light, a glowing person running on leaves runs in - it’s 

Marcy 
○​ Marcy beats up the ghost and destroys it 
○​ Marcy explains her story to them 

Episode 7 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ At the club house 

○​ Hanging out together, the group fills Marcy in 



○​ Talk about going after the mafia 
○​ Bryce the ghost suggests they should be doing the superhero things 
○​ Start figuring out some superhero getups 
○​ Start figuring out where Giovanni is 

●​ Go to Vini Vidi Pizzi 
○​ Chat with Vinnie 
○​ Rose has been keeping the place safe 
○​ Ash about Giuseppe - his territory is here and a few restaurants around here 
○​ Marcy uses Unshakeable Bloodhound Technique to track down Giuseppe 

●​ Down an alleyway 
○​ See Peter Giuseppe and his three tracksuit goons counting money and 

stuffing it into a briefcase 
○​ Lenard calls out to Peter 
○​ Fight! 
○​ Take out the group and the vampire in one turn, some of them give up, some 

are KOd, Giuseppe gets double kneecapped and into torpor 
○​ Bully the mooks to not blab 
○​ Take the money and Giuseppe, $10k 

Episode 8 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the alleyway 

○​ Plan on how to move Peter around without raising suspicion 
○​ Send Lenard to get his gym bag along with Marcy 
○​ Liv plans on folding him up by breaking his bones 
○​ A pair of police officers walk into the alleyway 
○​ Cas is trying to distract them, they don’t look too pleased 
○​ They have a pale sickly look to them 
○​ Cas rewinds time back to when everyone was together 
○​ Cas tells them that vampires are coming 
○​ Decide to Weekend at Berny’s this, cover up the guy being torpid and leave 

the alley 
●​ Go to the morgue 

○​ Liv goes to get a bodybag and a gurney 
○​ Go to an operating table with the vampire 
○​ He has black stripes over his eyes, he’s the raccoon vampire? 
○​ Figure out how to wake up Peter, Cas cuts herself with a scalpel to feed him 

blood 
○​ He heals himself up slowly 
○​ Figure out how to immobilise him 
○​ Lenard holds him down 
○​ Peter wakes up from torpor 
○​ Ask him about Giovanni 
○​ He needs some guarantee that he won’t be killed once he tells them 

everything 
○​ He wants to be a part of their crew 
○​ Mentions Lenard killed Rayman 



○​ He asks for some more blood 
○​ Peter tells them where Giovanni came from, that they deal in ghosts, etc. 
○​ Giuseppe is their hired muscle 
○​ Ask where the Giovanni are operating out of - they work out of Del Posto, a 

fancy restaurant in the east side of Brooklyn, they meet in the basement 
○​ Peter is a werewolf-related vampire, Giovanni are some other kind of vampire 
○​ Other vampires around - Giorno and Baby Hands, Papa Giovanni 
○​ Cas Name Pilfers Papa Giovanni - Francis Milliner 
○​ Figure out what to do with Peter after the interrogation - decide to just let him 

go 
○​ Put him back in the body bag to get him out of the morgue 

Episode 9 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Exiting the morgue 

○​ Take Peter out and open him up in an alleyway 
●​ Peter takes them to a park 

○​ Liv lets him drink from him 
○​ Peter melds into the ground 
○​ Liv opens a passage into the Shadowlands 

●​ Go into the Shadowlands 
○​ The topology of the shadowland reflection of New York is weird. Some streets 

aren’t there and so on 
○​ Go by the university, the clubhouse building is very prominent here 
○​ Go in 
○​ Liv hears professor Cane asking him about the papers for the clubhouse 
○​ Liv gives it to him, he opens the clubhouse door for them 
○​ Get their superhero costumes from the comic book club 
○​ Continue on 
○​ See a massive storm at the edge of the horizon - the Sixth Great Maelstrom 
○​ Some ghosts ask for Liv’s autograph 
○​ Ask some ghost about directions to the Del Posto restaurant 
○​ He warns them about the Giovannis being assholes 
○​ Mentions the ghosts in Del Posto are close to their fetters, their bodies are 

probably closeby. Those ghosts have been consumed by their Shadow so 
death / destroying their bodies would be a release for them 

●​ Go to Del Posto in the Shadowlands 
○​ It looks very strong and imposing, like the Bastille 
○​ The wards that are supposed to stop ghosts don’t work on them 
○​ Go down into the basement 
○​ Some ghost gets spooked by noticing them 
○​ There are some large wine casks around 
○​ Lenard punches one open, it is empty, there is a door behind it 
○​ Kick the door open 
○​ There are twelve angry ghosts behind it 
○​ They have chains binding them 
○​ Liv asks the ghosts if they want to remain after he frees them or pass on 



○​ They ask to be freed, Liv obliges 

Episode 10 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the Shadowlands of Del Posto 

○​ Prepare to get rid of the ghosts tied to Giovanni 
○​ Fight! 
○​ Open a portal to the real world 
○​ Three guys surrounding an altar with a dread body. One of the guys is 

missing an arm 
○​ Liv is cutting away ghost threads 
○​ The boss, Papa Giovanni, speaks some weird language nobody but Liv 

understands 
○​ Liv comes in from the Shadowland and withers away Baby Hands’ remaining 

elbow 
○​ Papa Giovanni tries to Open the Gates of Oblivion, but is sucked into the 

Maelstrom by accident and take Lenard with him 
○​ Cas rewinds time to before he casts the ritual, warns Lenard and shoots 

Giovanni’s brains out 
○​ A frenzied vampire jumps at him, Giovanni whispers “isilio” and they teleport 

to the Maelstrom 
○​ Liv shanks Baby Hands, he goes down 

Exalted’s Eleven Arc 

Episode 11 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the basement of Del Posto 

○​ Open a portal back to the Shadowlands not to be associated with the murder 
at the altar and so on 

●​ Go back to the school clubhouse and pass back to the real world 
○​ Update the comic book club on what they were up to 
○​ Lenard talks with Liv about Lenard’s nightmares 

●​ Time passes 
○​ There is a police report about 13 dead bodies being found in the basement of 

Del Posto 
○​ The building got firebombed after it was shut down for investigation, some 

kind of outside gang coming in to establish themselves 
○​ New comic book gets distributed, covering their Exaltations and so on. Its title 

is Anathema 
●​ Religion 101 class 

○​ Everyone from the gang is present 
○​ The professor proposes either doing a pop quiz or doing a report in the New 

York Natural History Museum 



○​ Decide to do the pop quiz, but then just go to the museum anyway 
●​ At the Natural History Museum 

○​ Dinosaur exhibit, some new ancient gems that washed up on the shore of 
Italy, a crystal coffin exhumed from the Dead Sea, a limited time display of 
The Ancient Viles (corked and sealed in wax), and The Hilt of the First Sword 
(some kind of massive sword, probably a Daiklave) 

○​ They try to weasel their way out of paying the admission fee, either fully or 
partially 

○​ Lenard asks Simple Man to check what the coffin tastes like, but it’s too scary 
for him 

○​ Go check out the coffin 
●​ Cas gets lost along the way, ends up by the Ancient Vials display. Three of them 

have something in them, the liquid looks fresh… 
○​ Old mesopotamia script on them, translated 
○​ Empty vials are labelled as The Final Gasp (aka influenza), The Great 

Contagion, The Black Death 
○​ The full vials are labelled as The Plague of Bone, The Hell of Rotting Flesh, 

The Stygian Curse 
●​ The rest of the group at the coffin 

○​ It seems to have some kind of Arcane protection on it making it be a bit 
unmemorable and the pictures of it fade (Arcane 6) 

○​ Everyone finds their castemarks on the coffin 
○​ It has some pictograms similar to tattoos Lenard’s sisters have 
○​ Lenard shows off his tattoo that matches one of them 
○​ Liv examines some of the green marks, look like Rose’s marks when she 

exalted 
○​ Marcy notices the sun symbols come in two cycles, each in different metals 
○​ Some angular pictographs 
○​ Cas joins the group, notices the sign of Jupiter and four other astrological 

signs 
○​ Marcy tries to draw the symbols down 
○​ Cas Name Pilfers the name of what’s inside of it 
○​ There is a body inside of it, humanoid, foetal position, skinless, tall, no head 

but seven tentacle things on its neck. Some kind of biblical monster 
○​ Lenard and Marcy go to get Liv some coffee 
○​ Some muscular woman taps Marcy on the shoulder, asking her to step out, 

because she has business with Lenard 
○​ She has a tattoo matching Lenard’s 
○​ Grace Van Zant (Earth Aspect), Lenard’s older sister pipes up and kicks 

Lenard. She was pretending to be the barista 
○​ Three other people join in - Olivia, Amelia and Eva (Air Aspect), his other 

older sisters 
○​ Two more, for a total of six out of eight of his sisters - Mia and Charlotte 

Episode 12 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the Starbucks 



○​ Lenard fights his sisters 
○​ Marcy joins Lenard’s side 
○​ Punch Grace into a wall, everyone stops and notices Lenard is glowing 
○​ The fight is over, the family servants cover the area up 
○​ Chat 
○​ Their mother has been missing for a few weeks in Bangladesh on family 

business 
○​ Lenard hasn’t been in touch for a few weeks 
○​ The sisters that are not here - Ela and Cloe 
○​ It’s alumni week, so it was time to haze Lenard as is tradition 

●​ Meanwhile, Liv and Cas are checking out the vials 
○​ Liv examines the vials 
○​ The Stygian curse - if released would cause an extreme version of solar 

allergy that could cause liquefaction of body in three minutes 
○​ Plague of Bones - another name for the Puppeteer’s Plague that makes your 

skeleton animate by itself and rip itself out of its body and infect other people 
○​ Multiple cameras observing the exhibit, some contraption ready to snap if 

someone tries stealing the vials 
○​ Lenard and Marcy come back with Lenard’s sisters and explain what they 

were up to 
●​ Continue around the museum 

○​ A small crowd is gathered in some kind of parade 
○​ Some guy running away, looking behind him, with some sheets of metal on 

his front and back, looking scared 
○​ Music coming from a mediaeval lute 
○​ Horse galloping on the pavement 
○​ Short guy in a platemail rides it, running down the guy with his jousting lance 
○​ The guy on the ground gets lanced and falls down. The lance explodes like a 

pinata, with candy 
○​ The guy starts talking, pompously. He’s Lord Yori Lora and he’s looking for his 

progeny, his daughter, Madam Cassandra Rola 
○​ A tall woman in bard’s garb, Cas’s mother, a lute and singer specialist 
○​ Marcy disappears somewhere 
○​ From an open manhole cover, a slender, buff, scarred guy with clicked back 

hair in slacks and hawaiian shirt appears, grabs her and pulls her away into 
an alleyway 

○​ It’s Dylan, her cryptid hunter prepper uncle that gave her Arsenal 
○​ He’s a paranoid sort, rambles about Francesca (Cas’ Roommate, Lucky) 

being on a watchlist 
○​ Dylan gives her a burner phone she can call to get some weaponry 
○​ Mentions that subways are filled with a terrible infestation 
○​ Some new guy is following other cryptids, probably is involved with the 

Mothman, has burnt down Del Posto and is planning on building a hotel there 
○​ Dyllan slinks out into the sewers 
○​ Cas’s father asks her about the folder of her absentee notes 
○​ Cas tries to prove she was in the classes, but she can’t find her emails and so 

on 
○​ The parents threaten to cease paying for her collage if she continues 



○​ They leave 
○​ An older guy in sweater vest and slacks, a woman in a poofy sweater and a 

dress come over to Liv. They are his parents - Sandra and Christopher Jones 
○​ Lenard mentions Oliver got shot and now Liv is here 
○​ His mom is a successful crime novelist, and his dad is a human was sculpture 

maker, and his work is displayed in Madam Tusso’s. He just finished a piece 
about the beheading of Marie Antoinette 

○​ Alumni week concludes 
●​ Later 

○​ A note on the door of the clubhouse - “I know what you are and we would like 
to work together, signed J” 

Episode 13 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv, Marcy, Stargazer and Basilisk 
●​ By the club house 

○​ Cas Name Pilfers J, their real name is Industrious Adamantine Jotun Of The 
Divine Forge 

●​ Meanwhile 
○​ Jotun talking with Stargazer and Basilisk 
○​ Jotun realises his name was pilfered and leaving the note was a mistake 
○​ Go get the car to meet the other PCs in person 

●​ At the club house 
○​ People hanging out 
○​ Aaron comes over looking for Oliver 
○​ He asks people to sign his first issue of Anathema comic 
○​ Annabelle scares Aaron away 

●​ The other three Exalts arrive around the club house 
○​ Jotun is very big, tall and wide with silvery sheen to him 
○​ Knock on the door 
○​ Chat 
○​ Jotun has a proposition for them - he needs their skills to return goods that 

were stolen from them, specifically from the Museum of Natural History 
○​ They need to steal the items so they are not used by other people for bad 

purposes 
○​ The vials are being sent to some sinister organisation, not the CDC. Jotun 

wants to safely dispose of them into Elsewhere 
○​ The gems are Alchemical gems 
○​ Negotiate payment - Liv wants one of the vials 
○​ Jotun mentions Autochthon 
○​ Cas figures out what Fate wants of her - she remembers the coffin and the 

Hilt of the First Sword 
○​ Liv asks Jotun about what he know about one of the vials - The Hell of Rotting 

Flesh, it’s a disease that eats any organism it touches like acid 
○​ They need to seal the things by Halloween, because that’s when the vials are 

being moved 
●​ Montage to prepare for the heist 



○​ Cas goes into the museum, writing down where the cameras are, noting other 
security 

○​ Cas Dynamic LARPs into an archeologist, Doctor Reece. Goes to examine 
the vials. They have pressure sensitive glass the guards can turn off. They 
also upped guard rotations there. The guards added some shutter doors as 
well. About 15 guards around. 

○​ Check out the security office and see how the cameras work 
○​ Leave 

Episode 14 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv, Marcy, Stargazer and Basilisk 
●​ Montage continues 

○​ Liv makes some kind of diarrhoea cocktail 
○​ Liv goes to a library to research security systems 
○​ Stargazer drives around the city to map the area around the museum 
○​ Lenard gets himself hired as a security guard, talks about his sister 
○​ Figures out the guard rotations, armaments 
○​ Lenard gets paid by some PMC corp - Pentex Inc. 
○​ Check the cop response time - they arrives pretty fast, even a helicopter 

deployed 
○​ Basilisk goes to a cafe in the museum to backdoor into the computer systems 
○​ Marcy goes to visit Lenard at work to bring him lunch 
○​ Asks a security guard that’s flirting with her to explain the security of the 

museum - learn about a high density laser grid 
○​ Marcy collects a few cigarette buds for Unshakeable Bloodhound Technique 

to track the guards inside of the museum 
●​ Halloween, the night of the heist 

○​ Lenard is working the night 
○​ Figure out who gets into the museum which way 
○​ Cas goes in as Doctor Reece, Lenard shows her around 
○​ Basilisk goes in through some underground tunnel, a lot of dead ghosts there 

Episode 15 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv, Marcy, Stargazer and Basilisk 
●​ Heist night 

○​ Basilisk hardwires into the museum’s network with his Universal Soul 
Breaking Computer (USB-C). Takes down the entire network offline 

○​ The guards are starting to feel the effects of the coffee 
○​ Lenard knocks the guards out one by one 
○​ Basilisk feels the Neverborn wants them to kill the guards with Death of 

Obsidian Butterflies, he asks the local ghosts / wraiths to go after them 
instead since the Gauntlet is so thin 



Episode 16 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv, Marcy, Stargazer and Basilisk 
●​ Heist night 

○​ Continue knocking out guards 
○​ Simple Man heals up some guy Lenard knocked out too hard 
○​ Grab all the loot, start figuring out what to do with the coffin 
○​ Liv takes a T-rex arm 
○​ Lenard touches the coffin, it starts glowing in the various splat colours and so 

on 
○​ The coffin evaporates, leaving behind a lizard with seven heads that speaks 

in some strange language 
○​ Manage to communicate in High Holy Speech 
○​ It’s hungry, it’s been in the coffin since The Garden 
○​ It speaks in Whispers to the Abyssals - he is The First Beast, created in the 

image of The Neverborn 
○​ Lenard starts choking it, it’s looking forward to the release of death 
○​ Take The First Beast into the car, which is bigger on the inside 

●​ Escaping in The Tokyo Drift The Wonder 5 Honda Civic 
○​ Cops are chasing after them 
○​ Stargazer drives really well and loses the cops 
○​ Take a bridge, cops are no longer following them, now humvees with machine 

guns are following them 
○​ Stargazer tosses motorcycles at the cops with a magnetic tether something 
○​ The people chasing them are from the Technocracy, telling them to stop being 

Reality Deviants, in accordance with the New World Order 
○​ The bridge is blocked by a large, four wheeled tank looking something, across 

all the lanes 
○​ Stargazer shoots it with essence cannon arm and it explodes 

●​ Go to the dropoff point 
○​ Liv keeps the Stygian Curse 
○​ The gang gets to keep The First Beast 

Empire God Wrecker Arc 

Episode 17 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Downtime 

○​ November passes 
○​ Cas barfs out an emerald spider, names her Charlotte 
○​ Liv studies the Stygian curse, it’s an airborne disease 
○​ Liv wants to infect Lenard with the disease to eat it back from him, Marcy is 

not happy about it 
○​ Liv infects him via a syringe. Lenard starts thrashing. Liv bites him 



○​ Cas asks her spider about the First Beast, it is one of the heralds of the 
apocalypse, a herald of the Dragon (Satan) 

○​ It comes from some land that no longer exists 
○​ The Beast starts healing Lenard 
○​ Lenard contacts his family. No word from his mother, but there have been 

more interference lately in their activities from the Night Societies of the world. 
The line goes dead as soon as Lenard mentions the First Beast 

○​ Lenard calls Detective Oak, saying he has information about mugging from 
the crime family and that he wants to meet 

○​ Oak also knows Terry, he’s one of his best informants 
○​ Arrange to meet at Greeley Square Park off 33rd Street 

●​ At the Greeley Square Park, in Koreatown 
○​ On the way there see that the Big Apple is rotting and has holes in it 
○​ Meeting with Detective Oak 
○​ Lenard asks him about his connection to Giovanni crime family 
○​ He doesn’t have any good leads 
○​ Liv goes to talk with his ghost Contacts he liberated from the Giovannis 
○​ Learns that Detective Oak hated Giovannis and didn’t appear much in Del 

Posto until he investigated it after the group killed the Giovanni 

Episode 18 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the park 

○​ Oak talking with Lenard figuring stuff out 
○​ Cas asks Oak directly what he wants from them since he’s connected to 

vampires 
○​ Oak plays dumb 
○​ Cas tries to Name Pilfer the name of his boss, but it doesn’t work 
○​ Lenard tries intimidating him, fails 
○​ Liv sends one of his ghosts to tail Oak 
○​ Oak leaves, grumbling 

●​ Go to the Empire State Building 
○​ The Big Apple is rotting 
○​ The spirit of the Big Apple is sending out a cry that transports them into the 

Penumbra 
○​ Cas resists that effect, but seeing that everyone disappears, she rewinds time 

to warn them 
○​ Lenard sends Simple Man to check things out, apparently the spirit wants to 

commune with them 
○​ Cas notices some unmarked vans filling the area 
○​ Men exit from them with some weird looking guns 
○​ Everyone goes back over the line and get sucked into the Penumbra 
○​ Empire State Building looks like a giant castle 
○​ The Red Star in the horizon is brighter and closer 

●​ Go into the Empire State Building 
○​ Single reception line, quite long 
○​ Various fairies around 



○​ Lenard tries to jump the line on Simple Man, gets accosted by guards in 
tengu masks. Lenard flares his anima, everyone bows in deference 

○​ Tell people they are in here to see The Big Apple 
○​ Guard opens up an express elevator 
○​ Two buttons - one with big apple sticker, one with a coiled dragon 

●​ Go up to the apple, the elevator moves erratically 
○​ Cas gets tossed out from the Elevator, reaches a Floor 13 - Forget Me Nots 
○​ The door closes behind her 
○​ Liv pries the door open, but the elevator is already moving 
○​ The Umbra doesn’t like being observed 
○​ Reach Floor 69 - A Day With Your Best Friend 
○​ Lenard hears Terry, talking about gathering information on Tall Whites 
○​ Lenard passes some barrier Liv noticed just fine, but Simple Man following 

just gets turned to ash 
○​ Liv decides to stay behind, the elevator goes up 
○​ Floor B-34 - My Own Demons 
○​ It has some surgical table, medical scrubs and so on 
○​ Liv gets off, leaving Marcy behind 
○​ Floor 47 - A Hunter’s Past 
○​ A smell of a home cooked New York meal, it’s Marcy’s parents’ dining room 

Episode 19 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Cas’s room 

○​ A waiting lounge 
○​ Her Introduction to Religion teacher is there, Francisca Lucky is there, her 

Circlemates are there but a bit off 
○​  Waiting for numbers to be called, Cas realises she has a number - S5 
○​ Gets served immediately in Interrogations 

●​ Marcy’s room 
○​ Her parents, Jasmine and James Barthelo, are drinking celebratory 

champagne, staff is serving large dinner for them 
○​ Trees out are in full bloom, which is odd for November 
○​ The parents are talking about Amazon union being busted, and how they 

wouldn’t be able to afford their next yacht otherwise 
○​ It’s a conversation from a past she witnessed 

●​ Cas’s room 
○​ Cas goes to Interrogation Room 
○​ Some other room has some electricity guy being BDSM whipped with a 

rubber whip 
○​ Interrogation Room - six chairs, a lamp and a table 
○​ Five women approaching her in a corridor, very similar, five different coloured 

scarfs - red, blue, yellow, black and white 
○​ They are here to do a business assessment of her 

●​ Lenard’s room 
○​ Terry is typing rapidly into a computer 



○​ Terry says he used to work in this building, but an old money australian family 
took it all from him, ones that are related to aliens 

○​ Helicopter outside, shining in, Terry drags Lenard to hide 
●​ Liv’s room 

○​ Going into operating room, assistants dress him in medical scrubs 
○​ George Testa was a made man from Giovanni family, shot in gang violence 
○​ He looks exactly like Oliver 
○​ Shot in the lungs 
○​ He starts operating 

●​ Marcy’s room 
○​ Marcy tells them she is dropping from the Law classes 
○​ The parents aren’t pleased, asking how will she carry the family business 
○​ Marcy mentions going into Uncle Dyllan’s footstep and going cryptid hunting, 

like her family has been doing for generations 
○​ Marcy drops she doesn’t like caviar which angers her parents 

●​ Cas’s room 
○​ The women enter the room, giving her a manila folder each, one pretty full 

(Secrets), one a unit of a chonkasaurus rex (Battles) 
○​ Go in and sit down, go over the folders 
○​ The women introduce themselves as The Five Maidens 

●​ Lenard’s room 
○​ Glass explodes inward 
○​ Two of Lenard’s dragonblooded sisters, Grace and Eva, with thick Australian 

accents speak up 
○​ They tell him Simple Man is dead and the farm is not real 
○​ Terry is the reason some information was leaked into the Night Society and 

that’s why Lenard’s parents are having so much trouble 
○​ Lenard reassures them Terry won’t leak more information, they don’t buy it 

●​ Cas’s room 
○​ Cas uses her Auspicious Prospects of Secrets to know what not to reveal 
○​ Folders: 

■​ Battles - Combat Assessment 
■​ Secrets - Covert Ops 
■​ Serenity - Personal Expenses 
■​ Journeys - Travel Expenses 
■​ Endings - KDA (Kill Death Assists) Ratio 

○​ This is her first official assessment after the first quarter of working “for the 
company” 

○​ They mention her balance is off between her two main folders 
○​ They mention she misfiled some receipts, for gambling tokens, cigarettes, 

archeology costume, etc. 
○​ Cas starts taking notes on top of the folders 

●​ Liv’s room 
○​ Sees every scar he had before Oliver died 
○​ Liv examines Oliver, figures out how to fix him 
○​ Liv fixes him up and saves Oliver 
○​ The thing responsible for his Exaltation is very angry at Liv, and his Spectre 

Notoriety is reversed 



○​ When he finishes, his scrubs disappear and he’s sitting on Floor 101 of the 
Empire State Building (one floor right below the top) 

○​ The local spirits have powered up his mask - it now lets him to drain Essence 
from ghosts and spirits, and doubles Essence back for draining people and 
other things via blood 

Episode 20 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Cas’s room 

○​ Asking about assistants and where is the Main Office, this is just a local 
branch 

○​ Cas will need to come in once a month to get things squared up 
○​ She can set up something at her own place, but will need to convince her 

handler to do that 
○​ The Maidens ask Cas about how well she’s setting up her Personas 
○​ Cas gives the clubhouse as a reference for how she’s performing 

●​ Marcy’s room 
○​ Marcy uses Memory Reweaving Discipline to change the parents’ memory of 

the scene so they are happy with her. They are now celebrating her decision 
to go cryptid hunting 

○​ Marcy leaves and goes into a room where Liv is sitting on a couch 
○​ Marcy’s disguise (shades and beanie) now lets her see Spirits and interact 

with them as long as she’s not attacking them 
●​ Lenard’s room 

○​ His sisters are coming in for an attack 
○​ Lenard grabs Terry and jumps out the window, then Heavenly Guardian 

Technique’s the ground not to take damage 
○​ When he lands he is on Floor 101, holding a watery man that doesn’t look like 

Terry. He’s The Shape of Water. He leaves 
○​ Lenard’s mask has more power now - can now determine who is a Creature 

of Darkness (terminator vision), but only in combat 
●​ Cas’s room 

○​ Maidens are asking Cas if she has been protecting her assigned Circle 
○​ Ask for tips on how to deal with the Circle better, get some documents to 

review 
○​ Get some information on how the Circlemates operate 
○​ Liv’s document mentions that he will bring about the end of days, has no soul, 

etc. 
○​ The Maidens prepare to leave, they will leave the dossiers at a filing cabinet 

in their club house 
○​ Cas appears in Floor 101 
○​ Now her glasses let her passively detect supernaturals that aren’t actively 

hiding themselves, and get a room-wide ping for noticing supernaturals 
appearing 

●​ Everyone together 
○​ A spirit appears, apologising for sending them through the express elevator 
○​ The leader needed to test their conviction 



○​ The other button would’ve made them fight dragons in the basement 
○​ Go up, they can see the Big Apple from there 
○​ Simple Man is there, happy to see Lenard. Jumps into his arms 
○​ Feel a presence of a powerful spirit - the city god of New York 
○​ The Big Apple tries mind reading Liv about what they did recently, Liv resists 
○​ Let it know about what they did with Giovannis 
○​ The Apple thanks them for the help, mentions something at the core of the 

city, a festering infestation. It needs to be stopped before it awakens and 
consumes all living things 

○​ Another threat comes from those that rule in glass towers, staring down 
○​ It asks them to take care of those corruptions, and in return it will swear his 

allegiance to them 
○​ It shows them which buildings have problems in the city 
○​ Ask it what’s below the ground - it’s a festering hive of a single creature 

feeding upon the living 
○​ It doesn’t know its name. It’s some kind of hivemind 
○​ Cas tries to Name Pilfer it, succeeds but doesn’t know much about it - it’s 

Tzimisce 
○​ Cas asks the Apple about it, it’s not pleased about the name, says it’s a 

grand-childe of Caine 
○​ It’s really large, covering a few city blocks 
○​ Cas asks Marcy if her uncle could give her a tour of the subway to check it 

out 
○​ The Big Apple is rotting from the corruption and vices people brought into the 

city 
○​ The Big Apple opens a portal for them to go back to reality, on the 99th floor 

Episode 21 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the Empire State Building 

○​ Figure out how to get down 
○​ Cas and Marcy use the elevator 
○​ Liv walks down the stairs 
○​ Lenard starts running down the stairs, hardcore parkour style 
○​ Lenard has a feeling he passed the same floor over and over 
○​ Exits on Floor 70 
○​ Elevator stops on the 70th floor and the doors slowly open 
○​ Liv slowly walks down, eventually reaches a steel wall on the Floor 70 as 

multiple steel barriers go down 
●​ Floor 70 

○​ Empty floor, a figure silhouetted with a moon behind them - it’s Francesca 
○​ She takes a whip out, she’s here to deal with Cas, because she’s been 

breaking many laws - she’s a Reality Deviant 
○​ Cas checks her aura, it’s a supernatural muted rainbow, with dynamic sparks 
○​ The steel barriers are covered in some warding glyphs 
○​ Liv is tired of her, so he opens up a portal to leave 
○​ Francesca disappears and reappears holding Liv in chokehold 



○​ He just picks her up, walks through leaving Francesca behind 
○​ Francesca tries calling on a walkie talkie. Cas tries shooting it but some 

reality break dodges 
○​ She calls Operation Deadsouls 

●​ Underworld version of the Empire State Building 
○​ See a helicopter carrying a freight container 
○​ The container crashes into the building, seven humanoid figures walk out, red 

glowing eyes, chainguns for arms, calling them to stop Reality Deviancy - 
they are Hitmarks! 

○​ By now Liv’s notoriety is back to normal because it was all a ruse by Big 
Apple 

○​ Fight! 
○​ Cas starts her Perfection of the Visionary Warrior, making her go over and 

over 
○​ Five more helicopters with freight containers start approaching 
○​ A wailing tornado of ghosts come in to take down two of them 
○​ Take down the Hitmarks 
○​ Hear a sound of a weird thing approaching - a semi truck with tires on fire 

riding up the building. It backs up to the 70th floor. It’s Lenard’s sisters here to 
rescue them 

○​ The First Beast is there too 
○​ Everyone gets on and leave 
○​ They deposit them in a rural area, by a really old mansion 
○​ The sisters invite them into The Van Zant Estate 
○​ They are in Genesee County, in Alabama, Western New York 

Sweet Home Alabama 

Episode 22 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ At the Van Zant estate 

○​ The place is a Dragon Nest? 
○​ Morning, the girls make a big breakfast for them 
○​ Lenard used to sleep in his mother’s room until he left for college 
○​ Talk about the Order of Reason they fought with the other day 
○​ The First Beast got in contact with the sisters ot let them know the group was 

in trouble 
●​ Two weeks downtime 

○​ Lenard invites Liv for training, which means he’ll be randomly assaulted by 
the sisters 

○​ Marcy gets sent to buy ammo for the estate 
○​ Francesca calls Marcy 
○​ She is taking care of her fish back in their apartment 
○​ She asks what she was doing with the Circle 
○​ She apologises for making a scene the other day, but things escalated 



○​ She mentions that Cas is guilty of rewinding time, which is breaking the laws 
for the Technocracy, etc. 

○​ Francesca is a reality cop / lawyer, joined them around the same time Marcy 
Exalted 

○​ Now her superiors have decided to do something else so Francesca won’t be 
pursuing them officially, only going after Cas for personal rivalry 

○​ There have been some problems from some newcomers to the Night Society 
lately 

○​ Francesca warns Marcy not to take the subway since they will be trying to 
deal with the problem there 

○​ Liv goes to the Van Zant library, it is filled with some really old books 
○​ Learns about the families of the Dragonblooded 
○​ Feels a presence of a ghost - the one that was sent to follow Officer Oak. The 

ghost is some 50s gangster 
○​ Oak reported to some vampire on one of the top floors of the One World 

Trade Center, probably is one of their ghouls 
○​ The ghost suggests finding a Dragon Nest in New York to make it easier for 

the ghosts to do their thing, if he can get it to flow into the Shadowlands, or 
linking the Dragon Nest with this one. He calls it the Perfect Afterlife Project 

○​ Marcy gets haunted by another ghost 
○​ Marcy uses her empowered glasses to check things out, sees the ghosts 
○​ Her old ghost uses some obscuring powers so it’s hard to figure out what they 

are 
○​ Cas does some research and enjoys her time off 
○​ She’s asked to shovel snow, the First Beast follows her all wrapped up 
○​ Cas has been researching High Hole Speech 
○​ The Beast helps her shovel the snow 
○​ It asks what it could help them with, she asks for it to figure out who is after 

them 
○​ It tried searching the Internet for Technocracy, but couldn’t find anything 

(since it was made by the Technocracy) 
○​ She asks it about what its name is / means, it responds - “Seven Headed 

Herald That Calls the End of the World of Seven Gods 
○​ It prefers being called The First Beast or The First Worshipper 
○​ A guy in a nice suit approaches the Van Zant manner, but doesn’t disrupt the 

snow. Cas hides to observe him 
○​ Cas reports it on the shortwave radio 

Episode 23 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ The Van Zant estate 

○​ Lenard hears a knock at the door, goes to open it 
○​ It’s Terry 
○​ He thanks Lenard for saving him in the Empire State Building 
○​ Eva goes to dropkick Terry, while he just wanders into the kitchen dodging it 

by accident 
○​ Lenard tells her how he met Terry at the soup kitchen he works at 



○​ People see Terry go eat raw coffee beans while Cas sees him trying to fix the 
coffee machine, she also sees him as someone else 

○​ Cas confronts him, the Terry guy says she’s blowing her cover 
○​ Cas recognizes he was one of the guards during the heist, the one that didn’t 

get merc’ed  
○​ Terry gets Lenard to go shovel the snow 
○​ Terry and Cas go into a private room 
○​ He explains himself, he’s a Sidereal as well, Serenities 
○​ His secret name is James Bond 
○​ He Exalted while being beaten up in a cinema, about two months ago 
○​ Talks about how he too was yelled at for “breaking the law” by various 

supernaturals 
○​ Talk about how he was helping Werewolves recently 
○​ He was following them in the museum for some rich lady called Olivia 

Jameson. Pale, red head, has an office high up on the One World Trade 
Center. She’s Wyrm-tainted? 

○​ He gives Cas his phone number 
●​ Lenard and Simple Man shovel snow while singing some tune 

○​ The blizzard picks up, Lenard’s Caste Mark itches 
○​ Lenard puts on his mask 
○​ Knives are being thrown all over at him 
○​ A form next to him starts moving forward, it’s a woman 
○​ He looks unhinged, but familiar 
○​ The woman smacks Lenard upside the head, it’s his mother, Indiana Van Zant 
○​ The guy’s name is Dyllan, here to see his niece 

●​ Go into the house 
○​ The ghost Marcy couldn’t notice before starts freaking out 
○​ The ghost’s features are very similar to her uncle’s features… 
○​ Indiana gets group hugged by her daughters 
○​ Dyllan is a Creature of Darkness. He explains that the old Dyllan died a few 

months ago trying to explore the New York subway and deal with whatever 
was in it. He is a Demon, a Fallen Angel possessing her uncle’s corpse 

○​ The ghost hunting Marcy is her uncle Dyllan 
○​ The Demon didn’t kill her uncle, it just took over the dead body 
○​ It was still her uncle during the Alumni Week 
○​ Demon Dyllan met Indiana as she dropped into a hell dimension really 

roughed up, he took care of her 
○​ Talk with Lenard about religion, everyone tells him he’s not an Angel 
○​ The Dragonblooded did something a few months ago, when there was the big 

communication blackout - they broke open The Black Vault. It had 
consequences - they woke up The Guardian, an old creature that was 
guarding it - The Zapathasura (Ravnos’ alias) 

○​ Talk about how it took them five days of fighting, a few nukes, an 
experimental Technocracy weapon, three Demons from Atlantis and a bunch 
of foot soldiers before that got taken down 

○​ It’s the same thing as the Tzimisce in the sewers 
○​ Indiana asks them what their plan is, they only have a season before that 

thing awakens? 



○​ (Indiana is 750 years old) 

Episode 24 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ At the Van Zant Estate 

○​ Ask if they will help them with the big fight 
○​ The sisters will, the mother is a bit too hurt 
○​ Liv looks over Indiana, she cauterised her wounds before 
○​ She should be ready for the fight now, before she would’ve taken six months 
○​ Lenard researches The First Sword, with help from Marcy 
○​ Find stuff about Daiklaves 
○​ You need Magical Material for them 
○​ Needs to be crafted by Master Crafter, and last one was made by some kind 

of jotun 
○​ Lenard suggests going to Norway to find jotuns, Liv suggests going to 

Wisconsin, the Norway of US 
○​ Cas asks Charlotte for information on who could repair the First Sword, points 

to someone in the Midwest 
○​ They need to finish their planning before March 20th, because that’s when 

The Red Star will be the closest to Earth and wake Tzimisce up 
○​ They need to clear out New York, otherwise Tzimisce would feast on them 

and heal up 
○​ Marcy wants to round up all the supernatural allies 
○​ Start figuring out how to get people to evacuate New York 
○​ Liv needs a bunch of sculptures for his plan… 
○​ It is December 25th 

●​ The guys are on the road to Disco, Wisconsin 
○​ Liv is driving a Ford Pinto 
○​ Arrive in Disco on December 27th 
○​ Reach the Sandra and Christopher Jones’ cottage 
○​ Go in, something jumps them 

●​ Cas and Marcy go back to New York 
○​ Go to Marcy’s apartment 
○​ Francesca is there, overwhelmed by the animals 
○​ Cas and Francesca starts trading information 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ Lenard tries punching the shape 
○​ Liv steps in front of Lenard’s punch 
○​ The thing that jumped them was a wax sculpture of Jason Vorhees with a 

machete in his hands 
○​ Talk with Liv’s mother 
○​ Liv’s dad is working on wax sculptures for an upcoming horror week 
○​ Liv asks his mom about a hypothetical situation of how she’d evacuate a city 

in a hypothetical novel 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Cas and Francesca talk 
○​ Talk about the thing on the subway, Cas tells her everything 



○​ Cas mentions that the thing killed her uncle and asks Francesca a personal 
favour to help take it down 

Episode 25 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ Talking about how Liv’s mother, Sandra, would evacuate a city in a novel 
○​ Get Liv’s dad, Christopher, to also consult on the question 
○​ Talk about the hypothetical being New York City area 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ Francesca agrees to bring the offer of the alliance to her higher-ups 
○​ She can probably help evacuate Brooklyn at least 
○​ Francesca comes to terms with Cas and her time rewinding tricks, their 

relationships warm up 
○​ Francesca mentions some Crawdaddy Reality Deviant she would want help 

with at some point 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ Christopher suggests loading people onto ferries 
○​ Suggests putting an Eye of Sauron on Brooklyn Pointe to spook people 
○​ Lenard asks about jotuns 
○​ Christopher mentions Jotun in a Honda Civic stopping by at some point 

asking for some sculptures 
○​ Lenard mentions Jotun and his gang hired them to rob a museum, to the 

shock of Liv’s parents 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Talk with Francesca about other Night Society people they would be 
interested in bringing in 

○​ Francesca suggests talking to them at the same time, since they see 
themselves as independent castles while they are not 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ Liv lies that they were just doing a museum tour 
○​ Lenard mentions stealing the Hilt of the First Sword from the museum, and 

talks about fighting demons for the lord and all… 
○​ Liv’s parents are disappointed that Liv is lying… about LARPing 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ Go to talk with Werewolves 
○​ Marcy notices a weird colony of mushrooms in the park, really large (4 feet 

tall), and in a shape of a man 
○​ Go in and investigate 
○​ They seem to be growing out of Peter Giuseppe, he’s drained of blood and 

the mushrooms are bloody 
○​ He calls for help 
○​ Marcy cuts a mushroom away from Peter, it sprays her with caustic acid 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ Talk about Jotun’s order - he ordered 10 people sculptures 
○​ Liv asks his dad if he has some statues he doesn’t need “for LARPing” 
○​ Christopher leads them into the basement, filled with many weird statues 



●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ Marcy is being sprayed with acid 
○​ Some kind of poison got to Peter, someone set a trap 
○​ Cas decides to shoot the mushrooms with finger guns 
○​ Peter drinks up the blood that bleeds from them, asks Cas for some more 

blood 
○​ Cas feeds him in an alleyway 
○​ Talk about vampire stuff. He mentions that Tzimisce is a vampire clan. 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ Christopher opens a big door, where he keeps the animatronics for “the 

Avengers of his time” - Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles 
○​ There are about 60 TMNT animatronics there 
○​ Liv asks him to ship it around February 
○​ Liv checks the area out, notices one of the Alchemical gems is here 
○​ It was a payment from Jotun, Christopher would know what to do with it when 

the time was right 
○​ The gem is actually inert, it doesn’t have an Exaltation in it, but it is made out 

of Orichalcum! 
○​ Lenard asks for it, Christopher insists on him taking it, Lenard says he’ll pay 

him by modelling for his wax sculptures 
○​ Liv asks what did his parents LARP back in the day 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ Talk with Peter. He’s clan Gangrel, and it’s the reason why he looks like a 

raccoon. Tzimisce need to sleep in their homeland soil. Elysium is on New 
Year’s Eve, 77th floor of The One World Trade Center. Sabbat bombed Del 
Posto when they killed the Giovanni, so Peter the Anarch joined the 
Camarilla. 

○​ Peter mentions he’s going to a party hosted by Prince Olivia Jameson 
○​ Offers to take them, but they’ll have to pretend to be his Ghouls 
○​ There is another party taking place in a new building on the ruins of Del 

Posto. It’s in a big hotel chain - Brightness Landing Hotel 
○​ Arrange to meet at the Elysium party. Cas will pretend to be a vampire, and 

Marcy - her Ghoul 

Episode 26 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Lenard and Liv 

○​ Liv’s dad, Christopher, suggests go looking for jotuns in Norway, Wisconsin 
○​ Hit the road 
○​ Exiting Tomahawk Wisconsin 
○​ Radio switches stations, hear sounds of Eurobeat 
○​ A Honda Civic starts drifting around the corners towards Rhinelander 

Wisconsin 
○​ Liv just keeps driving 
○​ The same thing repeats 15 minutes later 
○​ Reach Rhinelander 
○​ The roads have turned icy and dangerous 



●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ A few days before New Year 
○​ Cas calls James Bond 
○​ Ask for help meeting with the Werewolves 
○​ Go to Great Piece Meadows 
○​ James Bond is waiting for them there 
○​ Tell them of a guy called Hogan that can introduce them (aka him in Dynamic 

LARPing) 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ Liv skids on black ice and crash into a snow bank 
○​ Radio started by itself, blasting Eurobeat 
○​ Something really big outside, a green scaly monster, horns, large fangs, 

claws, the size of a small building - it’s the Rhinelander Hodag 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Meet with Hogan 
○​ Walk off the trail for an hour, reach a small campsite 
○​ At least 30 people there, 5-6 actual families 
○​ Sit by a campfire 
○​ Some guy of the Mediterranean descent, he’s a tribe elder, not speaking 

English (speaks Greek) 
○​ Hogan translates 
○​ Cas explains what they know about Tzimisce 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ Hear a car horn from inside of the Hodak, as if it ate a car… 
○​ Liv examines it to figure out why its stomach is upset, there is a car in his 

stomach 
○​ Liv goes into it to pull the car, Lenard pulls on Liv 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ The tribe elder is weary of them, but since the Red Star and so on is on the 

sky he trusts that they came with good intentions 
○​ The elder’s title, an ancient title, that he inherited in battle, is Surging Claws of 

Victory 
○​ The elder violently shouts to let them know he doesn’t want to work with the 

Vampires 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ Starts going into Hodak 
○​ See Roko and Jotun in the car inside of Hodak 
○​ Get it out with a good deal of effort 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ The Garou have been burned too many times by trying to work with the 

Leeches 
○​ Arrange a time to bring them in 
○​ They will bring in other Garou groups 
○​ The elder sends Magpie Spirits to spread the news 
○​ Leave good impressions 
○​ Hogan gives them a tip to get the vampires out of the city before the 

showdown, since a vampire eating a vampire gains a lot more power than 
eating people… 



○​ Ask James Bond for information on other Exalts he might know 

Episode 27 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ 29th of December 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ Lenard pets Hodak’s belly 
○​ Hodak leaves 
○​ Stargazer laments Hodak digesting the paint off of a cool drawing he put on 

the car 
○​ Liv asks what Jotun has been doing with his family 
○​ Jotun needed some simulacras to imbue with the Alchemical core 
○​ Liv grabs Jotun to fix his car 
○​ Lenard asks Jotun to make a Daiklave for him 
○​ He can do it, in his workshop, in Norway, Wisconsin 

●​ Cas and Marcy 
○​ Talking with James Bond 
○​ Cas asks for contact information about other Exalts 
○​ He mentions three guys he knows in Norway, Wisconsin, namedrops them 

and Cas recognizes who they are 
○​ James Bond explains to Marcy that he’s like Cas 
○​ Bond explains there is one Exalt in Brasil, a lot in Europe, 3-4 in Russia, a 

bunch weaker ones that work with Elements, etc. 
○​ One Abyssal in Middle East 
○​ Drive back to New York 

●​ Liv and Lenard 
○​ The snowstorm stopped after Hodak left 
○​ Hodak mentioned something to Liv about seeing it on the shores of Beaver 

Island 
○​ Go to Wisconsin 
○​ Go to a building looking abandoned, but it’s bigger on the inside, about the 

size of half of New York. A lot of robots working there, working the forges, 
machines, etc., making everything 

○​ Production line continues, up to high tech stuff 
○​ Jotun alludes to being Santa Claus 
○​ Asks what Liv would like as a present artefact-wise, tells them to call their 

friends what they might want as well 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Marcy calls Lenard 
○​ Marcy tells them about Jotun and his workshop, which they already know 

about 
○​ Liv asks what presents they’d like 
○​ Marcy tells the boys they should ask Jotun and others for help with fighting 

Tzimisce, but Jotun is rather busy making gear for all the Exalts of the world 
and so on… (it’s part of his penance?) 

○​ Jotun mentions there are 12 other things like Tzimisce out there, so he can’t 
call others for help 



○​ He’ll give other groups a call if they take down one of the other Antediluvians 
early 

○​ Jotun asks what they would want before his ELF units v9 go on vacation / 
maintenance, etc. 

○​ He’ll need to get ELF 10.0 for Switch Pro release soon… 
○​ Cas asks for armour, Marcy asks for a gun or Firewand 
○​ Liv suggests they go cryptid hunting together, in Norway… 

●​ Lenard 
○​ In ruined main street of Brooklyn, mangled bodies everywhere 
○​ Unfathomably large beast looms above him 
○​ He had this nightmare before? 
○​ Lenard has a daiklave in his hand 
○​ Charges at the thing with the daiklave instead of his bare fists this time 
○​ Gets further than he did before 
○​ See corpses of his three Exalted friends that didn’t make it as far. As well as 

other of his friends. 
○​ The big thing bring downs its sword on top of Lenny, and he wakes up 

●​ Lenard and Liv 
○​ They are on a ferry to Beaver Island 
○​ Jotun said he sent his Honda Civic to pick up the girls so they’d all be able to 

meet up on Beaver Island 
○​ It’s mid-day January 1st 

Episode 28 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Cas prepares to LARP as a Vampire, someone from Peter’s clan 
○​ Peter gives her a loadown 
○​ Stargazer brings them a suitcase and a dry cleaning bag 
○​ Cas gets the bag, it has her Artefact 
○​ The Perfected Embodiment of the Greatest And Most Terrifying Dancer In 

Any Court, The Raiments of Nix The Spirit Shepherd (a reference to Brit’s old 
character?) - a weave of Starmetal and Moonsilver, looks like a wedding 
dress the greatest dancer in history was never able to wear. It changes forms. 
It has a rainbow sheen to it 

○​ Marcy gets the suitcase 
○​ Velath’s Sigh That Stood Against The Red Tide Demon Prince And Saved 

The World (a reference to Christina’s old character?) - a large shotgun with a 
dragon head made out of Orichalcum, a Dragon Sigh Wand 8 shooter 

○​ Cas walks off to LARP as a Gangrel - Gianna Veil 
○​ Peter is intimidated by her, because she comes off as a 7th gen Vampire 

●​ Go to the One World Trade Center 
○​ Marcy hides her shotgun with one of her Essences 
○​ Bouncer asks them for invites 
○​ Peter presents it 
○​ Go to the 73rd floor 
○​ Classical music is playing 



○​ A lot of wine glasses with blood 
○​ See Prince Olivia sitting on a large throne 
○​ Cas goes to mingle, and feel out how powerful the local vampires are 
○​ Most people are Peter’s power, one person doesn’t flinch at Cas, three others 

look down on her 
○​ Marcy just tries to blend in 
○​ A sheriff looking guy approaches Cas, asks who she is 
○​ Sheriff Bruce Duggins 
○​ Cas will be introduced to Prince along with Peter, since he’s new to Camarilla 
○​ Marcy sees some man being followed by nerds, graphs her hand, asks if 

Marcy is a refreshment 
○​ He pulls her towards a refreshment closet 
○​ Cas confronts him 
○​ He’s Seneschal Marcus (Tremere) 
○​ Normally Giovanni provide refreshments… 
○​ Cas says she wants to let the Prince know about something 
○​ Marcus implies he’d like some blood in exchange for the favour 
○​ Cas insinuates he’ll get more than he wants if he helps her 
○​ Duggins assigns some new vampires to escort Marcy 
○​ Duggins warns Cas that the Prince tends to exert her mind control powers on 

people that aren’t ready 
●​ Liv and Lenard 

○​ On a ferry to Beaver Island 
○​ Liv naps 
○​ Liv is standing on the precipice of Oblivion 
○​ A somewhat see-through man there, it’s the ghost that asked him to make 

things easier for New York ghosts 
○​ He mentions there are some messed up magical energies on Beaver Island 
○​ There are some blocked chakras in there, that if unblocked would flow 

through the Van Zant estate to New York to make things better for the ghosts 
○​ Hear a sad roar of Jeff Hodag 

Episode 29 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Cas and Marcy 

○​ Cas throws a Lesser Sign of Jupiter up for herself, Marcy and Peter to 
prevent their mind from being read and from mind control 

○​ Cas gets brought to Prince Olivia Jameson 
○​ Talk in a roundabout way with one another 
○​ Cas name drops Tzimisce 
○​ Olivia already heard rumours of it 
○​ She lost contact with Nosferatu in the sewers 
○​ Marcy namedrops Bangladesh to chill the atmosphere 
○​ Duggins the Sheriff is cautious, suggest they evacuate for a bit 
○​ The Prince acquiesces 
○​ She offers to leave her more confident fighters to help out - Duggins and an 

arab-looking guy 



○​ Cas declines just to be safe 
○​ They will clear in about half a month time, before the end of January 
○​ Leave the party 
○​ The Honda Civic is waiting for them downstairs 
○​ Get in and drive to Beaver Island 
○​ Cas play around with her Artefact clothes, shifting them from one clothes to 

another 
●​ Beaver Island 

○​ Lenard has his Daiklave by now 
○​ Liv also has his Artefact but is hidden 
○​ Everyone meets up 
○​ Liv explains to them they are looking for Jeff Hodag, but not to hunt it 
○​ Hear its growl in the distance 
○​ Go into the woods, can’t find the Hodag 
○​ They do find about 30 Sasquatches though with stone age weaponry 
○​ They are hunting the Hodag 
○​ They start moving towards a cave… 
○​ Lenard goes running towards them 
○​ Cas fires Liv with her magical bow to give him a head up 
○​ Marcy starts ninja running on snowflakes, pulling Cas on sleigh 
○​ Liv finds the Hodag in the cave, one of its legs is injured 
○​ It is protecting three little hodags and five eggs 
○​ Lenard protects the cave entrance 
○​ Liv uses his Wisconsin accent to calm the Hodag down, Hodag recognizes a 

fellow Son of Wisconsin 
○​ Liv realises that Sasquatches are Hodag’s mortal enemies, and one of them 

will need to die 
○​ Liv tries to treat Hodag’s leg, but doesn’t do a good enough job. Pulls out his 

Artefact - I Need 20 cc Stat - archaic Soulsteel surgical tools 
○​ Full title - Breathless, Soul Stoked the Inferno of Oblivion And Forged In Trails 

of Fire, The Necrosurgeon’s Panoply 
○​ Heals the Hodag back to full, it joins the fight 
○​ Liv lets everyone know the Sasquatches need to die 

Episode 30 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ In the cave of Jeff Hodag 

○​ Lenard summons his Orichalcum Daiklave - The First Blade To Pierce The 
Heavens And Make All Equal Beneath The Blue Sky, the Titan Slayer 

■​ It has a sliver of Orichalcum which grows with each strike against a 
Creature of Darkness? 

○​ Everyone arms up 
○​ Fight the Sasquatches! 
○​ Lenard goes for the group 
○​ Liv summons his magical Soulsteel needle, fills it with hot, liquid tungsten, 

and throws it at the leader to burn them from the inside 
○​ Cas shoots it in the head with a hot sunbeam to finish it 



○​ Marcy incinerates the group with her Dragon Sigh Wand 
○​ The Sasquatches are exterminated 
○​ Hodag takes a few corpses to feed its young 
○​ Liv has an idea of what to do with the Sasquatches… 
○​ Liv asks Lenard to cut his arm off, he obliges 
○​ Liv asks Lenard to cut off a Sasquatch arm 
○​ Liv saws the Sasquatch arm onto himself with Corpse Graft Technique 
○​ Liv uses his Necrosurgeon Kit’s power of the Reanimator to make a flesh 

monster out of the dead Sasquatches - What Was Once Many Sasquatch 
○​ Meanwhile, Marcy goes to play with Hodag children not to witness any of this 
○​ Hodag tells Marcy she can summon him in her hour of need by saying 

“Hodag”, even though she is not a Daughter of Wisconsin 

The Battle for Brooklyn 

Episode 31 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Go back to New York 

○​ Plan to fight on March 1st 
●​ Marcy 

○​ End of January 
○​ Invited to the pier by Demon Dyllan 
○​ He tells her that he’s proud of her, both as the person holding the memory of 

his uncle, and as himself 
○​ See some dead fish floating around, with the familiar fungus on them 
○​ Talk about Tzimisce. It apparently wants to become everything, but still needs 

to grow in mass 
○​ Demon Dyllan will stay and fight 
○​ Talk that they still need a plan to evacuate the mortals 

●​ Cas 
○​ Hanging out, smoking 
○​ Gets a text from Marcy, saying she needs to come to her apartment, it’s 

important 
○​ Go there, Francesca opens the door. Invites her in. She took Marcy’s phone 

since she didn’t have Cas’ number 
○​ She wants to talk logistics 
○​ The Technocracy will need a bit of help from them 
○​ Talk about the Eye of Sauron plan 
○​ They will need something on the ground floor to get the masses to start 

evacuating 
○​ She does mention a popular comic book… 
○​ Francesca asks them to ask the publishers to do some kind of “prophecy 

issue” to help with that evacuation 
●​ Liv, at the campus 



○​ They have been working hard on hiding the large mass of Sasquatches in 
trench coats for a while 

○​ Cas brings them the Francesca plan, the ghost agreed to it 
○​ Something heavy hits the ground outside the door 
○​ Liv checks it out 
○​ A forklift was holding a large crate with a note with Liv’s father’s note of “For 

your LAPR, son” 
○​ Man driving the forklift - Aaron 
○​ Aaron asks him about if the thing from the comic will happen, will the thing 

beneath Brooklyn awaken 
○​ Invite him for coffee, confirm everything is correct 
○​ Aaron vows to cause commotion on that day to get more people out 
○​ Have a catch-up session together with the ghosts and all 

●​ March 1st, 2AM 
○​ The comic book has informed a lot of people of what will happen 
○​ The Eye of Sauron appears on the highest building in Brooklyn 
○​ It starts speaking some scary nonsense to scare people away 
○​ Military starts getting people out of there 
○​ Some people still stay, but most evacuate 

●​ At the 45th Street Subway Station 
○​ Meeting with Demon Dyllan 
○​ They plan to drive the train into Tzimisce if they can 
○​ Liv starts up the train, but its breaks don’t work 
○​ Drive it to old, unused tracks to ram into Tzimisce 
○​ Group says their final goodbyes just in case they don’t make it 
○​ Everyone but Lenard and Liv leave the train before the impact through a 

demon portal 
○​ Lenard and Liv suplex the train into Tzimisce 
○​ Lenard outruns the crashing train, Liv gets gibbed but regenerates 
○​ Everyone regroups 
○​ Something is approaching them, with many maws, tendrils and so on 
○​ It’s some kind of vicissitude’d flesh monster made from many animals 

Episode 32 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ People being evacuated from Brooklyn 

○​ Multiple Werewolves approaches 
○​ Francesca lets them pass 
○​ Lock down Brooklyn 

●​ In the underground 
○​ The train killed three of those flesh monsters, now it’s down to the last one 
○​ Fight it 
○​ Defeat it 
○​ Regroup with Demon Dyllan 
○​ See a riving flesh, 50 feet tall, covered in fungus, etc. 
○​ A single eye opens and notices them 
○​ Multiple maws open 



○​ Start fighting it 
○​ It starts digging up 
○​ It tries dominating them, but botches 
○​ Lenard cuts off its drill arm 

●​ In the Underworld 
○​ Energy seeps in 
○​ The area is rejuvenated 
○​ Sixty ghosts prepare to fight, one of them is the ghost of Uncle Dyllan 
○​ The ghosts start possessing the TMNT animatronics 

Episode 33 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ Flashback 

○​ Rosewell is fighting the Tzimisce chrysalis 
●​ In the underground 

○​ Continue fighting the flesh monster 
○​ Marcy’s player uses her “get out of jail free card” to protect herself. A 9 foot 

tall, long-limbed red haired women wearing flannel is there - it’s Rosewell, 
protecting her 

○​ She’s been fighting this thing for months 
○​ Carve the flesh off over and over, get to a cocoon on the inside 
○​ Cas sets the whole beast ablaze 
○​ Tendrils pierce the ground and reach the surface 
○​ It rises into the morning sunlight in Brooklyn 

●​ Meanwhile on the surface 
○​ Aaron is rescuing a girl, but his leg gets mangled as tentacles erupt 
○​ He tells her to run away 
○​ He takes a forklift and rams it into a tentacle 
○​ A toothy maw swallowed him and the forklift 

●​ On the streets 
○​ The Exalts get pulled up 
○​ Send Cowabunga Boys to fight the Tzimisce, Werewolves are running crowd 

control to stop it from eating people 
○​ A blade pierces the flesh monster, Tzimisce in his Perfected Form raises from 

it - a 50 foot tall thing with multiple arms 
●​ Flashback 

○​ The collected Garou nation of the North Western Seaboard assembled in 
Brooklyn 

○​ They would be the last line of defence between the Wyrm and the rest of the 
world 

○​ They transform, grab their weapons and go 
○​ They saw a miracle happen - a medical student in a Forklift attack a tentacle 

and get swallowed by it, but then he emerged as a giant wolf, bigger than the 
Werewolves 

○​ They united under his banner to fight! 



Episode 34 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ On the streets 

○​ Fight Tzimisce and the crystalis of flesh 
○​ Cas shoots the flesh monster with a car via her bow 
○​ Set it on fire 
○​ Cowabunga Boys fight it and start melting, minus their metal frame 

●​ Flashback 
○​ Cas talking with Francesca in her apartment 
○​ She has been promoted to head recruiter for her district and she would be 

interested in Cas working for her group 
○​ Cas offers to gamble for it 
○​ Cas does some time rewinding, Francesca notices it 
○​ Cas wins, she will consider the proposal 
○​ Francesca is no longer her rival 

●​ On the streets 
○​ A building is coming down on Cas and Marcy 
○​ Cas pushes one of her LARP characters, the vampire Gianna Veil, out of 

herself to stop the debris for a second as Cas saves Marcy. The move is 
called RP Before Safety 

○​ Tzimisce is trying to mind read people to draw out their worst fears, almost 
everyone fails and gets scared. Lenard botches and freezes in fear 

○​  

Episode 35 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ On the streets 

○​ Liv snaps Lenard back to reality 
○​ Fight Tzimisce 
○​ Liv injects Tzimisce’s eyeball with Lenard’s blood 
○​ The animatronics wood chipper the crystalis 
○​ Marcy summons the Hodag to attack Tzimisce 
○​ Lenard cleaves Tzimisce’s arm off 
○​ Liv’s player uses his “get out of jail free card” to save Marcy from a collapsing 

building by summoning Tokyo Drift and the three other Exalts to whisk her 
away from the crashing building before driving away 

○​ Tzimisce exercises the ghosts from Cowabunga Boys, but Liv sends those 
ghosts into What Was Once Many Sasquatches 

○​ Liv uses his Unconquered Hero’s Faith charm to turn into a Solar for the next 
day 

Episode 36 
●​ Cas, Lenard, Liv and Marcy 
●​ On the streets 

○​ Liv turns into a Solar 



○​ Liv stabs Tzimisce in the other eye with his Soulsteel scalpel 
○​ Tzimisce fungus finally finds some people to feed on 
○​ A tentacle goes off to the bay in a North Western direction 
○​ Lenard cuts it off 
○​ The tentacle is going for The Statue of Liberty 
○​ (Cinematic mode kicks in) 
○​ Tzimisce collapses more buildings on them 
○​ Cas sacrifices her archeologist persona, Doctor Reece, to save Marcy 
○​ Liv slowly vivisects Tzimisce 
○​ Lenard pins the tentacle that is trying to run away with his Daiklave and 

wrestles it 
○​ (More “get out of jail free” cards get used) 
○​ Tzimisce tries killing them 
○​ Everyone escapes but Marcy 
○​ Marcy is saved by one of the animatronics that gets crushed 
○​ It’s Ghost Dyllan. He goes out saying “Don’t worry kid, I’ll always have your 

back” 
○​ Marcy is no longer haunted as it is gone now? 
○​ Liv and Lenard suplex the 50 foot tentacle onto the Statue of Liberty, and 

impales it on the crown 
○​ Run over to Statue of Liberty anime style to make sure the tentacle is dead 
○​ When they get there, the Statue of Liberty's torch is missing, coming down on 

them 
●​ Flashback 

○​ Late Saturday Night, Middle of January, Halftime 
○​ Sharks are down by 1 touchdown, the team are not looking so great, they are 

playing against their rivals, the Saint Francis Red Flashes 
○​ Lenard trades position with the quarterback, Touchdown Thomas 
○​ People start changing Lenard’s name 
○​ A guy built just like Lenard on the other team starts chasing Lenard as he’s 

going for the touchdown 
○​ Lenard gets to the end zone and scores 
○​ Goes to congratulate the other guy on a good game. His name is Marco 

Sanchez 
○​ Celebrate 
○​ After everyone has left, a knock on the door 
○​ A short figure with blonde hair, well built 
○​ It’s his dad, he’s proud of him 
○​ It’s been a few years since Lenard has seen his dad 
○​ Go hang out together 
○​ He leaves for the Van Zant Manor 

●​ On the streets 
○​ Lenard blocks the Liberty Torch with his Daiklave 
○​ Lenard’s anima flares, giving him angel wings and a second set of hands 
○​ Lenard runs up the creature, bisecting it 
○​ Victorious, he collapses and dies 
○​ Simple Man comforts his corpse and lies next to it 
○​ People grieve but move on 



●​ Elsewhere in the world 
○​ More Antediluvians rose up 
○​ Another Solar was fighting a beast that rose up in Jerusalem 
○​ Vegas, New Orleans, Europe, in the East, in Australia, other heroes rose up 

to stop them 
○​ Eventually, the world turned back to normal 

●​ Later 
●​ Marcy 

○​ Marcy finished her degree 
○​ Since the world accepted the existence of supernatural beings, cryptozoology 

and occult became an actual studies 
○​ Marcy was fighting for the rights of cryptids to remain unhunted, and the 

sapient ones to be accepted into society 
○​ The more hostile ones, like some of the vampires, Marcy hunted from time to 

time 
●​ Cas 

○​ Decides to work with the Technocracy 
○​ Continues to work for Secrets and Fate and to help the supernaturals of the 

world 
○​ The First Beast becomes her secretary 

●​ Liv 
○​ After showing his true colours, he’s plagued with agony and nightmares by 

the Neverborn for his transgression, but he endures 
○​ He goes on to help the living, the dying and the dead to be a bridge of 

understanding between them 
○​ He’s known as the Prince to the Dead as he values sapience of all creatures, 

no matter what they look like or what they are 
●​ Go sharks! 
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